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Ë Our focus is to provide

highly specialised
healthcare in a limited
number of selected
treatment areas
(Service Lines) and
become a leader
in these

Welcome
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Highlights

August 2006 - Global Health
Partner PLC - initial placing to raise
£13.2 million and shares admitted to
trading on AIM.
Successful establishment of four
specialist service lines:
» spine surgery and rehabilitation
» dental implant surgery and
prosthesis surgery
» orthopaedic and sports medicine
surgery and rehabilitation
» obesity treatment, including
bariatric surgery

Selected clinical treatment areas
together with the best medical
entrepreneurs:

“Quality through
Specialisation”

Clinical centres developed through
the acquisitions of SSV, Obesity
Stockholm and Leif Sward Orthopedi
during early 2007.
Strong balance sheet reinforced post
year-end – February 2007 – £12 million
placing.
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Timeline: April 2006 - June 2007

Ë

June

Ë

- Global Health Partner PLC
(GHP) incorporated
- GHP executive and nonexecutive directors appointed
- Swedish and UK Executive
Management team
recruitment

Ë

April
– Start of new
financial year

Ë

September
- Acquisition of 51% of Nordic
Dental Implants Clinic at
Sophiahemmet Hospital in
Stockholm
- Acquisition of 100% of
Gothenburg Medical Center,
an orthopaedic sports
medicine clinic
- A joint agreement established
to develop a treatment
protocol for Obesity with
Sahlgrenska University
Hospital in Sweden

August

Ë

- Merger of GHP with Bombshell
- Placement of shares raises £13.2 million
- Acquisition of GHP Swe AB, a strategic
investment and management company
- Acquisition of 90.1% of Stockholm Spine
Center at Löwenströmska Hospital
- GHP shares admitted to trading on AIM

October/
November
- Continued development
of the GHP integrated
business model

Ë
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GHP has undertaken considerable
development activity to establish
its business platform

December

Ë

- 31 December, end of
current financial period

Ë

February

Ë

- Placement of shares raises
£12 million
- Acquisition of 65% of Obesity
Stockholm, Sweden’s largest
private obesity clinic

January
- Acquisition of 88% of
Stockholm’s Specialistvard,
an orthopaedic surgery
clinic located at
Löwenströmska adjacent to
Stockholm Spine Center

Ë

May
- Start-up of Gothenburg
Spine Center

April
- GHP’s preliminary financial
results announced
- Acquisition of 100% of Leif
Sward Ortopedi, a leading
private sports medicine clinic
located in Gothenburg

Ë

June
- Establishment
of joint venture
arrangements with
medical entrepreneurs
and property partners
to address current
opportunities in the
Swedish elderly care
market

Chairman and Chief Executive’s Review

Ë


Ë

Chairman and Chief Executive’s Review

Ë

GHP believes in specialised, high quality,
patient focused centres with models
of care based upon benchmarked and
measured clinical pathways
Introduction
I would like to start my first review
of the progress of the Global
Health Partner group (GHP),
since its market launch in August
2006, by saying that it has been
a pleasure to join forces with our
principal investors, old and new
management colleagues from
within the industry, and the first
group of medical entrepreneurs.
We are pleased to bring together
this experience and knowledge to
form a dynamic enterprise, with a
unique integrated business model,
in a growing business sector and
at a time of much change and
development within Scandinavia
and also in the UK and the rest
of Europe.
The very fact that we have been
able to start fresh, with no
historic baggage or operational
limitations, with a business model
that brings together experienced
deal-making and operational

resources, together with leading
medical entrepreneurs, provides
us with a great opportunity. GHP
intends to grow quickly and to add
value within our chosen business
areas by applying the range
of skills assembled within this
management team.
Our model and a fresh start
give us an initial advantage of
nimbleness. We are backed by
significant resources. However,
we are very conscious, despite
the considerable level of
business development activity
generated so far, that we remain
a young organisation with major
challenges to perfect and roll-out
our integrated business model.
We have decided to focus our work
in carefully selected clinical areas,
together with the best medical
entrepreneurs, under the brand
“Quality through Specialisation”. So
far, we have established ourselves
in four clinical areas:

Focus on
clinical quality
Ë
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» Spine surgery and rehabilitation
» Dental implant surgery and
prosthesis surgery
» Orthopaedic and sports
medicine surgery and
rehabilitation
» Obesity treatment including
bariatric surgery
The major achievements during
2006 have been:
» Acquisitions of reference clinics
in spine and dental surgery in
Stockholm and an orthopaedic
surgery clinic in Gothenburg.
» Recruitment of key staff and
establishment of offices in
Gothenburg, Stockholm and
London.
» £13.2 million capital raising and
the admission of our shares
for trading on the London
Stock Exchange’s Alternative
Investment Market.



Ë

From left:
Per Båtelson, Chairman &
Chief Executive Officer,
Johan Wachtmeister,
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

GHP’s business model aligns
and engages the interests of
leading clinicians

Ë

Activity after the year end has also
reflected work carried out during
2006 on development projects in
our selected clinical areas:
» Acquisitions of a leading sports
medicine and orthopaedic clinic
and an obesity treatment clinic
in Stockholm.
» Further capital raising of
£12 million.
» Acquisition of a reference
clinic in sports medicine and
orthopaedics in Gothenburg.
» Establishment of joint venture
arrangements with medical
entrepreneurs and property
partners to address current
opportunities in the Swedish
elderly care market.
» Spine Center Gothenburg – our
first organic start-up.

GHP’s Strategy and
Business Model
Our strategy is directed
towards an area of significant
opportunity in the European
specialised healthcare sector,
namely Specialised Healthcare
Services (Service Lines). Both
in Sweden and in a number of
other jurisdictions, the private
healthcare sector is expected
to expand during the next few
years, with the public sector
also increasing its purchases
of resources from the private
sector to meet provision
guarantees. The selected clinical
areas of spine surgery, dental
implant surgery, orthopaedic
surgery, and obesity treatments,
among others, offers real
growth opportunities and good

Experience in healthcare
operations and
transaction structuring

margins which all benefit from
a standardised service model.
GHP aims to build Service Lines
in these areas by acquiring
reference clinics with superior
standards and results, together
with highly qualified medical
staff, and by rolling out the
model from these clinics, now
established in Sweden, across
geographic areas to create
a network of specialist, high
performance clinics.
We are partnering with leading
experts in our chosen fields,
offering them equity participation
and support in the development
of their clinics through which
they operate.
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Having the key clinicians as
shareholders aligns their interests
and creates a shared objective with
GHP within a tighter, integrated
and lower-cost operational model.
The model therefore promotes the
efficiency of the relevant clinic and
the development of the specialised
clinical services. It also provides
the clinicians with an individually
controlled exit opportunity when
value creation has occurred and
succession secured. GHP, through
its qualified staff, provides expertise
and services in areas such as
business development, management,
finance, property, marketing and
contracting. Our integrated business
model also ensures financial and
operational quality, together with
strong governance and provides
the necessary overall resources for
expansion both organically and
through acquisitions.
We anticipate that each specialised
Service Line will grow both through
acquisition and roll-outs, in
accordance with the underlying
market conditions for that
specialty. We will strive for specific
synergies, for example co-location,

The corporate resources will be kept
at optimal levels in order to secure
the lowest possible overhead burden
on operations. We believe that this
model can create a meaningful
cost advantage versus traditional
hospital delivery models, whilst
producing quality output through
specialisation at the same time.

Quality through
Specialisation
We have all seen the great quality
differences that patients experience
in present hospital systems. Not
only do we see a too large variation
in medical outcomes, but worse,
differences in the content of
services offered. There are clear
tendencies towards rationing of
relevant treatments due to lack
of resources, lack of competence
or unclear political prioritisation.
Patients are not informed
consumers and have great
difficulties in judging the quality
and content of the treatments that

they are provided with. Hospitals
typically deliver a wide range of
specialities in a local geographical
area. There are few quality controls
or benchmarking activities
that would otherwise secure
development, transparent patient
information, quality enhancement
and collective learning.
GHP has focused on delivery of a
holistic service within well defined
treatment areas to overcome these
deficiencies. A highly specialised,
multi-centre approach will
generate new opportunities to
enhance quality and efficiency,
through securing collection of
comparative output measurements
and transfer of learning beyond
individual clinic borders. This will
also, over time, allow us to build
quality brands that patients and
payors should recognise and prefer
over traditional hospital providers.
A GHP Service Line focuses
primarily on areas of acute medical
conditions within the specialised
healthcare sector and can be
summarised pictorially as shown in
the diagram.

Provider Segment

Range of Treatments Offered

Non emergency
Tertiary care

Secondary care
in-patient

First line

Traditional Hospital
Specialist Clinic
Spine
Obesity
Orthopaedic
Dental implants

Service Lines (GHP)

Ë

but a relative level of independence
between clinical services will be
maintained.

Geographical markets
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Four Established
Service Lines


Favourable Swedish and
European healthcare trends

Ë

GHP Investments
Our principal focus will be on the
development of specialist services
in the area of acute care. However,
where we see the potential to
deliver further returns to our
investors in sectors where the
management team have specific
experience and expertise, without
over-committing management
resources, we are prepared to act
on a structured basis to avoid
dilution of both that management
resource and GHP capital.
Our recent entry into the Swedish
Elderly Care market on the basis
of a carefully structured venture
capital approach is an example
where our management expertise
can enable us to achieve a market
entry. The venture brings together
leading elderly care management
expertise and property expertise
into one vehicle operating in
a growing sector in Sweden.

Market Conditions
The European healthcare services
market continues to experience
high growth rates supported by

such fundamentals as an ageing
population, demand for improved
service levels and the development
of medical technology advances.
Governments continue actively
to outsource public hospital and
other primary healthcare activities
to the private sector to increase
capacity, improve quality and
facilitate risk transfer.
The public and private insurers are
now more and more concerned
with the quality and value aspects
of healthcare provision.
We regard the market conditions
in our core target Swedish,
Scandinavian and UK markets to be
fair, given recent developments.
In particular, the elections in
Sweden which brought a new,
more free-market, Government
into place have created favourable
business opportunities. The drive
to enforce the patient rights to get
treatment on time, more choice
and new outsourcing opportunities
can only be helpful changes for our
integrated business model.
In the UK, the general market

conditions are influenced by the
NHS programme to cut waiting
lines. The self pay and insured
markets are not growing as they
used to, mainly due to shorter
waiting lines in the public system
and a general belief that the
NHS must be modernised and
upgraded. The larger insurance
companies have also started to
tender for supply, putting pressure
on price and, in some instances,
such as Magnetic Resonance
Imaging Services (MRI), they have
started to ‘direct’ patients to a
preferred supplier.
At the same time, hospital
companies and individual private
enterprises are valued at or close
to record levels. Private equity
firms, as well as trade buyers,
continue to compete fiercely for
the opportunities that come to
the market. In many ways, the
UK has become a much tougher
market than expected, at least in
the short-term, for new private
initiatives.
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Business Review
Service Line: Spine surgery
and rehabilitation
Spinal surgery is traditionally
delivered in multi specialty centres,
and it is our view that more
effective treatment and clinical
outcomes can best be achieved in
specialised, high quality, patient
focused centres, where the full
range of medical and surgical
treatments – surgery, rehabilitation,
physiotherapy and psychiatry –
can be provided under medical
supervision which is coordinated
and effective.
This approach offers a major
opportunity throughout Europe,
and is supported by models
of care based upon defined,
benchmarked and measured clinical
pathways, affording the potential
for continuous assessment and
evaluation of clinical performance.
Our reference clinic within Spine
surgery is Stockholm Spine Center
(acquired in August 2006), headed
by our partners Tycho Tullberg and
Björn Branth, which forms the
basis from which to develop our
activities in Sweden, in Norway
through Spine’s associate company
Vestnorsk Ortopedisk Sykehus, and
through networking with leading
clinicians elsewhere in Europe.
Spine Center is based at the
Löwenströmska Hospital, outside
Stockholm. It has 13 full-time
physicians, with two fully
equipped and one day service
operating theatres, and provides
elective, primarily degenerative,

spine surgery and rehabilitation
treatment. Its four principal
diagnose areas are spinal
stenosis, disc hernia / slipped disc,
spinal fusion and degenerative
neck conditions. It also offers
rehabilitation services under three
major treatment schemes which
vary in length and structure
depending on the seriousness of
the patients’ condition.
Spine Center operates a holistic
and relatively rare service in
that it offers patients surgery,
rehabilitation, psychiatry and
physiotherapy under the same
medical supervision.
It is also active in research with
key projects in the areas of new
disc prosthesis, spinal stenosis
surgery and fusion, and cervical
decompression, fusion, surgery and
discography techniques.
Since its acquisition in August
2006 Spine Center has performed
satisfactorily. It has been successful
in maintaining its key contracts
with Stockholm County Council
which account for approximately
50 percent of its revenues and has
also expanded its activities to other
public health authorities. Greater
numbers of private patients,
including increasing levels of
international patients, were treated
during 2006 and in October and
November Spine Center recorded its
highest levels of operations.
Spine has also continued to
develop its research activities
funded primarily by third party
implant companies and in March
2007 appointed its first emeritus

Ë
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professor of spine surgery, Claes
Olreud, which will strengthen the
capability in research and clinical
trials.
As part of the development
activities in Sweden, a Spine
Center in Gothenburg has been
successfully established with three
surgeons coming onboard and
operating at GMC’s facilities from
May 2007. Tycho Tullberg has also
taken on the chairmanship of the
newly acquired SSV business, which
is adjacent to Stockholm Spine
Center in Löwenströmska.

Service Line: Dental implant
surgery and prosthesis surgery
Dental implant treatment is
a superior solution to tooth
replacement, involving titanium
screw anchored bridges and crowns
instead of traditional detachable
bridges. It is our view that there is
a considerable market opportunity
arising from the establishment of a
number of specialised, high quality,
patient focused centres throughout
Europe, with models of care based
upon defined, benchmarked and
measured clinical pathways.
GHP acquired, in early September
2006, its 51 percent interest in a
dental implants business carried
out from the Specialisttandvarden
clinic at the leading hospital
Sophiahemmet in Stockholm,
Sweden and from a second dental
implant and odonthology clinic
in Stockholm. These two clinics
co-operate significantly with each
other under the leadership of their
co-founders, Dr Thomas Nordin
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Quality through
specialisation

Ë

and Dr Roland Nilsson. One clinic
specialises in high quality and
convenient implant insertions,
while the other clinic specialises
in periodontology, which involves
the diagnosis and treatment of
diseases of the periodontium
(the tissues that support and
surround the teeth), as well as
the placement and maintenance
of dental implants. Surgeons at
these clinics possess the skills to
remove teeth and insert implants
and abutments in one surgical
intervention. The final crown or
bridge can then be fastened within
one to three weeks. The clinics
have scientifically documented and
published their methods which
are able to deliver new implants in
a shorter time period than most
clinics. The Sophiahemmet clinic
is well established operating a
direct marketing approach and
is considered to be among the
market leaders in Sweden.
The market for dental implants
looks set for expansion as
there will be a move away from
conventional bridges, driven by
increased patient demand for
more sophisticated solutions. The
possibility that reimbursement

Partnership
approach

systems in various European
countries may change to cover this
procedure may also give rise to
international opportunities moving
forward.
Using the network of our partners
we have advanced discussions with
other clinics within Sweden. The
opportunity exists to build through
acquisition at reasonable prices
by acquiring individual clinics in
a fragmented market. The level
of development activity has been
such that we have recruited a fulltime chief executive to manage our
dental activities in 2007. However,
in March 2007 our dental implant
operations were impacted by a fire
at the periodontology clinic. While
the operations were adequately
insured for such an occurrence,
some operational momentum has
been lost as a result.

Service Line: Orthopaedic and
sports medicine surgery and
rehabilitation
Orthopaedic surgery is traditionally
delivered throughout Europe in
multi specialty centres, which
offer a wide range of specialties.
It is our view that more effective

treatment can be provided in
specialised, high quality, holistic
centres, where the complete range
of orthopaedic procedures can
be provided alongside superior
diagnostics and comprehensive
post operative therapies.
This service provision is also
underpinned by models of care
based upon defined, benchmarked
and measured clinical pathways,
giving opportunities for
continuous clinical assessment and
development. We believe that this
model of delivery affords major
opportunities for GHP throughout
Europe.
Gothenburg Medical Center was
acquired in September 2006, out
of administration. GMC operates
a sports medicine clinic with 3
operating theatres located in
Gothenburg. These facilities were
acquired with the expectation
that a major overhaul programme
would be undertaken at the outset
to improve the clinic’s operating
procedures. The clinic will be
developed to enable other Service
Lines, such as spine surgery, to use
its facilities.
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We completed the acquisition
of 88 percent of Stockholm’s
Specialistvard in January 2007.
SSV is an orthopaedic surgery
clinic with two operating theatres
and is situated in the same
premises as Stockholm Spine
Center at Löwenströmska. The
acquisition provides an outstanding
opportunity for GHP to expand
its operating capacity in specialist
orthopaedic surgery in the
Stockholm market working with
Dr Ingemar Gladh, the new chief
executive of SSV, Dr Mats Heidval
and Thomas Ihre, the previous SSV
chairman.
In February 2007, we signed
an agreement to acquire 100
percent of IFK-kliniken, (Leif
Swärd Orthopedi AB) the leading
orthopaedic surgery and sports
medicine clinic which operates
at Carlanderska private hospital
in Gothenburg. IFK-kliniken
possesses a strong reputation for
clinical excellence and is headed
by an internationally renowned
physician, Dr Leif Swärd, physician
to the England football team. IFKkliniken has a leading reputation
for excellence in orthopaedic and
sports medical surgery arising from
the expertise of Dr Swärd, Dr Lars
Carlsson, Dr Ulf Nordenson and Dr
Lars Regner. It operates both on
contracts from the public and the
private sector.
The IFK and GMC clinics will
form a joint clinic within
orthopaedic clinical services and
the operations of IFK and GMC

will be consolidated within GMC’s
operating facilities and within a
new clinic situated in the centre
of Gothenburg. These will provide
a lower cost, fully equipped, top
quality surgical environment for
the IFK surgeons. Considerable
work lies ahead to integrate
successfully the operating practices
of IFK and GMC and to develop the
culture of the merged business, but
the combination of IFK’s reputation
for surgical excellence and GMC’s
operating capacity is potentially
very strong.

Service Line: Obesity
treatment including bariatric
surgery
Obesity, clinically defined as a
condition where an individual
has a Body Mass Index greater
than or equal to 30kg/m2, has
increased constantly during
the last 20 years and today it is
estimated that 20 to 30 percent
of the European population
is obese. These individuals are
exposed to a severely increased
risk of contracting a range of
obesity related co-morbidities,
with consequences such as
increased absence from work,
early retirement and an inferior
quality of life. In many cases, severe
obesity can result in premature
death.
Recently, data from the Swedish
Obesity Study was presented,
comprising over 6,000 patients,
some of whom had been monitored
for 20 years. The study confirmed

Clinical protocol agreement
for obesity treatment
Ë
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that weight loss induced by
bariatric surgery (operations
to help promote weight loss) is
associated with markedly reduced
incidence of diabetes, increased
recovery from existing type 2
diabetes, greater than 40 percent
reduction in incidence of BMI
and an approximate 30 percent
reduction in overall mortality.
Other studies show a substantial
quality of life and life expectancy
increase for patients treated with
bariatric surgery. Consequently,
there is a significant need for
specialist treatment centres that
offer a quality assured, full range
treatment programme for patients
suffering from obesity.
We believe that this market is
severely underserved and that
demand is likely to increase. We
therefore decided to make obesity
treatment our fourth area of
clinical services and intend to open
a number of clinics for specialist
treatment of morbid obesity in
Europe over the coming years.
Initially, in September 2006, we
entered a ten-year development
agreement with Sahlgrenska
University Hospital in Sweden to
design a model for optimal obesity
treatment. The collaboration aims
to develop clinical protocols for
quality assured, best practice, and
measurable obesity treatment. In
addition to securing medical best
practice, focus is being directed
towards process optimisation and
development of an IT support
system that will enable quality

11
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Reference clinics with superior
standards and results
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control and benchmarking between
GHP’s obesity clinics.
In February 2007, we took a major
step forward with the acquisition
of 65 percent of Obesity Stockholm,
the owner of Kirurgkliniken Sverige,
a private surgery clinic which
operates at Sophiahemmet hospital
in Stockholm. The operation is
the third largest obesity clinic in
Sweden and the largest private
clinic in Sweden by number of
procedures.
The clinic operates on a private basis
and the majority of the patients are
private. However, there is a contract
with Stockholm County Council and a
number of public patients are treated
every year. Dr Göran Lundegårdh,
the founder of the clinic, who still
holds 35 percent of the shares in the
company, is an experienced obesity
surgeon who has been performing
bariatric surgery with nursing and
dietician support at Sophiahemmet
Hospital for the last seven years.
He will take a leading role in the
development of GHP’s obesity clinical
services including the expansion
of the obesity operations to other
geographical areas. The combination
of the developed protocols in use
within this specialist obesity clinic,
with its strong reputation for clinical
excellence and well established
operating position, gives us a strong
position in obesity surgery in the
Swedish market which is likely to
grow. We are currently running a
number of projects and expect to
open further obesity clinics during
2007 and 2008.

GHP’s Future Plans
There is significant current business
activity both to develop our chosen
Service Lines in Scandinavia, where
our locations are currently situated,
but also in the UK and Europe both
through roll-outs and further addon acquisitions.
Progress to date has been
satisfactory, but GHP remains a
young organisation with significant
challenges to perfect and roll-out
its integrated business model,
especially in replicating its Swedish
operational successes in the UK
and other European markets. So
far we have been able to test our
business model only in Sweden.
We are gaining interest in and are
exploring opportunities in the UK.
We have also initiated contacts
in the Netherlands, Norway and
Denmark.
Of course the market situation,
regulatory environment,
political landscape and quality
of entrepreneurship vary
significantly, both within
individual markets and amongst
them. We believe, however, that
our integrated business model,
where the key stakeholders are
the operators, has an excellent
opportunity to succeed with
adaption to local market
conditions. As part of this it is
our aim to duplicate and repeat
projects, measure and benchmark
outcomes and, over time, develop
to support the efficiency and

quality of the clinics.
2007 will become a critical year
for GHP when the model will
be tested outside our home
market. It remains to be seen
how successfully this can be
done. Given the current market
receptiveness to the business
model in favourable operating
conditions in Sweden, GHP will
continue to pursue penetration in
the Scandinavian market alongside
European roll-outs.
Overall we are pleased at the
development of the integrated
business model achieved to date,
and remain focused on delivering
against the significant challenges
of early stage development and,
as far as possible, living up to
the market’s current expectations
of GHP.

Per Båtelson
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Business development
through roll-out
and acquisition

Board of Directors

Ë
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Johan Fredrik Schering
Ian Wachtmeister
Deputy Chief Executive &
Chief Operating Officer

Johan Wachtmeister is the
former chief executive officer
of Ledstiernan, the Swedish
listed venture capital company.
Previously, he was an executive vice
president of SEB, the leading Nordic
banking group. He is also one of
the co-founders of Stockholm
Spine Center AB. Currently he is
the Chairman of Bangkok Hospital
Group Sweden. He has both an
MBA and MSc degrees.

Ë

Per Båtelson was instrumental
in establishing and was chief
executive officer of Capio AB
1993 to 2005. He founded and
was Chief Executive Officer
of Karobio, the listed Swedish
biotech company from 1986 to
1989. He has extensive industrial
and commercial experience from
the international pulp and paper,
chemical and biotechnology
industries. He is currently the
Non Executive Chairman of
Apoteket AB, the Swedish public
healthcare pharmacy and a
non-executive director of Priory
HealthCare Group.

Ë

Ë

Per Gunnar Båtelson
Chairman &
Chief Executive Officer

James Fitzgerald Thornton
Corporate Finance Director

James Thornton was an Investment
Banker at Morgan Stanley from
1990 to 1995. He was then Head
of Finance at BAT Industries PLC,
where he managed the demerger
of its Financial Services interests
and their merger with Zurich
Financial Services , and Deputy
Group and UK Finance Director
of Old Mutual PLC from the time
of its demutualisation and listing.
He directed the turnaround of
IFX’s Foreign Exchange Division
prior to IFX PLC’s sale in 2006. He
is a Chartered Accountant and a
Harvard MBA.
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Entrepreneurial drive
and governance expertise

Ë
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Andrew Stephen Wilson
Non-executive Director

Andrew Wilson is currently
Chairman of London Town PLC
and a non-executive director of
The Corporate Services Group PLC,
Digital Marketing Group PLC and
Watford Leisure PLC. Until 2005,
he was corporate development
director of Capio AB where he was
responsible for its international
acquisitions and until recently a
Director and previously Chairman
of Southern Cross PLC. Prior to
that he was an investment banker
with UBS Warburg specialising in
mergers and acquisitions.

David Bruce Hammond
Non-executive Director

David Hammond has been NonExecutive Deputy Chairman of BB
Holdings Limited since 1998.
Mr. Hammond is Chairman of
Carlisle Group Limited. He was
previously Deputy Chairman of
ADT Limited from 1989 to 1996,
Director and Chairman of the
Audit Committee of American
Medical Response Inc. from 1993
to 1997. He was a member of the
Competition Commission from
1995 to 2001. David Hammond,
who is a Chartered Accountant, has
over 30 years’ experience in the
services industry.

Ë

GHP’s model combines
experienced deal-making and
operational resources with
leading medical entrepreneurs
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Senior Management

Ë
Tobias Sven Linebäck
Chief Financial Officer

Tobias Linebäck joined GHP from
Ernst & Young Stockholm where
he was a senior manager from
2005 to 2006 working mainly
on assignments with prioritised
international clients. Prior to
that he worked in London with
global business development
and strategies at Ernst & Young
Global, the Ernst &Young group
management company and as
a tax lawyer at Ernst & Young
Sweden from 1999 to 2004. During
1998 and 1999 he was a trainee
at the group executive board of
Munksjö, a Swedish listed company.
Tobias has a degree of Master of
Commercial Law (1999).

Experienced central
management team
established
Ë
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Ann-Sofi Lodin has long experience
in the healthcare sector, both from
private and public providers. She
was Head of Capio Healthcare
Nordic 2004 to 2006 and has had
other leading positions within the
Capio Lundby Hospital and Head
of Business Area Psychiatry. Before
joining Capio, Ann-Sofi Lodin
was controller of Sahlgrenska
University Hospital. She is Director
of Bure Equity (Listed company)
and the Hospital group of
Skaraborg.

Ë

Ë

Ann-Sofi Birgitta Lodin
Business Development
Director

Christopher John Leworthy
Group Commercial Director

Chris has over 20 years’ experience
of international healthcare. He
was Chief Executive of St Martins
Healthcare, a London-based tertiary
private hospital group, until its
sale in 2000. He then started
and developed his own strategic
healthcare consultancy business
with projects in UK, Portugal,
Saudi Arabia and elsewhere, before
joining Capio. He led Capio’s
successful participation in the
reform of the UK NHS, by proposing
and securing the major contract for
the development of a number of
private sector managed Treatment
Centres across England.
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Financial Review
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Introduction
» Global Health Partner PLC was
incorporated in the United
Kingdom (England and Wales)
on 27 June 2006.
» On 14 August 2006, the Company
merged with Bombshell Limited
(‘Bombshell’). Bombshell was
incorporated in Belize on 9
September 2004, and its shares
were traded on the Alternative
Investment Market of the
London Stock Exchange (‘AIM’).
Bombshell’s sole asset was a US
dollar denominated cash deposit.
» On 14 August 2006, the
Company raised funding of
approximately £13.2 million
after expenses in a placing of
23,568,769 ordinary shares.
» On 15 August 2006, the
Company acquired the
entire issued share capital of
Global Health Partner Swe
AB, a strategic investment
and management company
based in Sweden and whose
principal asset was an
established management team
of experienced professionals
operating in the specialised
healthcare sector. The
acquisition was financed by the
issuance of 5,000,000 ordinary
shares at 50 pence each.
» On 16 August 2006, the
Company acquired 90.1 percent
of Stockholm Spine Center AB,
a specialist spinal surgery clinic

located in Stockholm, Sweden.
The acquisition was financed
by the issuance of 3,375,000
ordinary shares at 60 pence
each, 2,375,000 convertible
bonds of £1 each, cash of
approximately £2.8 million and
the assumption of external
acquisition financing. Deferred
consideration may become
payable in December 2008 on
the fulfilment, at that time, of
certain conditions.
» Also, on 16 August 2006, the
Company’s ordinary shares were
admitted to trading on AIM
(ticker symbol - GHP).
» On 5 September 2006, the
Company acquired 51 percent
of Nordic Dental Implants Clinic
AB, a specialist dental implant
clinic located in Stockholm,
Sweden. The acquisition was
financed by the issuance of
3,200,000 ordinary shares at 60
pence each and the assumption
of external acquisition financing.
Deferred consideration may
become payable in September
2009 on the fulfilment, at that
time, of certain conditions.
» On 29 September 2006,
the Company acquired the
entire issued share capital of
Gothenburg Medical Center
AB, a specialist orthopaedic
sports medicine clinic located
in Gothenburg, Sweden. The
acquisition was financed by a
cash payment of approximately

QUALITY
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£1.6 million and the assumption
of external acquisition financing.
The Group’s financial statements
consolidate those of the Company
and all of its subsidiaries and equity
accounts for the Group’s interest in
its associate – Vestnorsk Otopedisk.
The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared
in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union, including interpretations
from the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) and the Standing
Interpretations Committee (SIC),
and the provisions of the UK
Companies Act 1985.
The merger between the Company
and Bombshell has been accounted
for under the pooling of interests
method of accounting, as a
required exemption under IFRS,
due to the existence of a common
controlling shareholder at that
date, Lord Ashcroft, KCMG, in both
the Company and Bombshell. This
method of accounting assumes
that the combining companies
have been merged since their
respective inceptions and requires
that the historical consolidated
financial statements of Bombshell
are pooled with those of
the Company for all periods
presented.
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Financial Review, continued

Ë
The Group’s financial statements
have been prepared as at
31 December 2006 and for the
period 1 April 2006 to 31 December
2006. The income statement and
cash flows comprise those of
(i) Bombshell for the period
1 April 2006 to 14 August 2006,
at which time the merger with the
Company was effected, and then
(ii) the combined group for the
period from 15 August 2006 to
31 December 2006. The Company
did not trade in the period from
its date of incorporation on
27 June 2006 to 14 August 2006.
The comparative data is in respect
of Bombshell as at 31 March 2006
and for the period 9 September
2004 (its date of incorporation) to
31 March 2006.
The consolidated financial
statements are presented in UK
pounds Sterling.
The preparation of consolidated
financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of
estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date
of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge
of the amount, event or actions,
actual results ultimately may differ
from those estimates.
Going forward, it is intended
that the Company will report its
consolidated financial statements

for the twelve month period ended
31 December each year, together
with half-year information to
30 June.
The Company has elected to
prepare its parent company
financial statements in accordance
with UK GAAP which are presented
separately from the Group financial
statements.

Performance Review
The initial reported period to
31 December 2006, has clearly been
a start-up period for the Company
following the 14 August 2006
merger with Bombshell. With three
significant acquisitions being made
at different points during the five
month period of operations, very
limited conclusions can be drawn
from a review of the performance
of our specialised healthcare
operations.
Nevertheless, during the period
following their respective
acquisitions, both Spine surgery
and rehabilitation and Dental
implant surgery and prosthesis
surgery services have continued to
perform strongly.
The Orthopaedic surgery and
rehabilitation services were
acquired out of administration
and, while some progress has been
made to reconstruct operations
through process improvements
and recruitment of new physicians,
there remains considerable work
to be done to increase activity and
bring the clinic up to acceptable
operational margins.

Ë
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Within the clinics our financial key
performance indicators are based
on (i) a measurement of procedures
undertaken; (ii) revenues generated
from such procedures; and (iii)
contribution as a percentage of
revenues.
In respect of the Group as a whole,
the financial key performance
indicators are (for the period):
» Revenue from operations £5.7 million
» Operating results before
central costs as a percentage of
revenues - 17.8%
» Loss before taxation £(0.7) million
» Loss per share - (4.6) pence
» Borrowings as a percentage of
total assets - 34.5%
The operating loss for the
period of £0.3 million is stated
after corporate expenses of
£1.3 million which relate to those
costs incurred in starting up and
maintaining the group central
management team during the
period. This team oversees the
current business and manages
the corporate development and
expansion of Group according to
its stated strategy. Finance income
of £0.2 million, mainly interest on
cash deposits, is offset by interest
expense of £0.2 million, principally
arising on external acquisition
financing. In addition, the impact
in foreign currency translation
of the decline of the US Dollar
from its opening position at April
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From left:
Tobias Linebäck,
Chief Financial Officer,
James Thornton,
Corporate Finance Director

Ë

2006 on Bombshell’s then dollar
denominated funds, partly arising
prior to the merger with GHP,
resulted in a foreign exchange loss
of £0.4 million. This resulted in an
overall loss before taxation of
£0.7 million.
At the end of the period, the
Company has sustained a strong
balance sheet and retained
significant cash resources.
At 31 December 2006, the Group
had consolidated total assets of
£40.3 million, net current assets
of £11.0 million, and net assets of
£22.8m, including £22.6 million of
goodwill derived from the Group’s
acquisitions of its specialised
healthcare service operations
and a corporate management
company. Total cash balances
were £12.6 million and external
acquisition finance borrowings,
principally established against the
cash flows within the operations,
were £13.9 million, including
£2.1 million of convertible debt.

Post Balance Sheet Events
a) Acquisition of Stockholm’s
Specialistvård AB
On 12 January 2007, the Company
announced the acquisition of 88
percent of Stockholm’s

Global Health Partner PLC

Specialistvård AB, an orthopaedic
surgery clinic located in Stockholm,
Sweden. The acquisition was
financed by cash of approximately
£1.0 million.

b) Acquisition of Obesity
Stockholm AB
On 15 February 2007, the Company
announced the acquisition of 65
percent of Obesity Stockholm AB,
with its wholly-owned subsidiary
Kirurgkliniken Sverige AB, a private
obesity clinic located in Stockholm,
Sweden. The acquisition was
financed by the issuance of
328,829 ordinary shares at
130 pence each.

c) Acquisition of Leif Swärd
Ortopedi AB
On 18 April 2007, the Company
announced the acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of Leif
Swärd Ortopedi AB (IFK-kliniken),
a private sports medicine clinic
located in Gothenburg, Sweden.
The acquisition was financed by
cash of approximately £1.1 million
and the issuance of shares in the
Group’s subsidiary Gothenburg
Medical Center AB (GMC) at a
value of approximately £1.0 million
and representing a 28 percent
minority holding in GMC.
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d) Investment in Elderly Care
On 20 June 2007, the Company
announced the provision of
approximately £0.9 million
committed resources to be made
available as venture capital to
develop Elutera, a new venture
within the Swedish elderly care
market in which GHP owns
approximately 43 percent of
the operating company and
approximately 47 percent of the
investment company, whilst acting
in partnership with an elderly
care entrepreneur and a property
company.

e) Issue of ordinary shares
On 7 February 2007, the Company
announced that it had issued
314,439 ordinary shares at
71.24 pence each to certain senior
managers in the GMC business.
On 20 February 2007, the Company
announced that it had placed, with
existing shareholders, a further
12 million ordinary shares of
50 pence each at an issue price of
£1 per share, raising approximately
£12 million after expenses. The
net proceeds of the placing will
be utilised as additional working
capital to fund growth of the
Group both organically and by
acquisition.
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The Directors present their report and the financial statements to the members of Global Health Partner PLC for
the period from 1 April 2006 to 31 December 2006.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
Global Health Partner PLC (principally an investment holding company) was incorporated in the United Kingdom
(England and Wales) on 27 June 2006 and formed for the purpose of developing and promoting specialised
healthcare services. On 14 August 2006, the Company merged with Bombshell Limited. Further details are set out
in notes 1 and 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group’s net loss for the period amounted to £982,000 which has been transferred from reserves. No interim
dividends were paid and the Directors do not propose a final dividend.
The Directors anticipate that, for the foreseeable future, the Company will not pay dividends but will preserve any
surplus cash for business development purposes. This policy will be reviewed at least on an annual basis.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
The Group has established a specialised, integrated healthcare services business model in the clinical areas of
spine surgery and rehabilitation, dental implant surgery and prosthesis surgery, orthopaedic and sports medicine
surgery and rehabilitation, and obesity treatment, including bariatric surgery.
Further details are set out in the Chairman and Chief Executive’s Review and the Financial Review, to which
reference should be made.

Movements in share capital
During the period, the Company increased its issued share capital from £3,216,727 to £20,851,112 through the
issuance of 35,268,769 ordinary shares of 50 pence each as follows:

»

»
»
»
»

issuance of 23,568,769 shares at an issue price of 55.75p to 60p each for total net cash proceeds of £13,180,000
issuance of 5,000,000 shares at an issue price of 50p each for the acquisition of Global Health Partner Swe AB
issuance of 3,375,000 shares at an issue price of 60p each for the acquisition of Stockholm Spine Nya Holding AB
issuance of 3,200,000 shares at an issue price of 60p each for the acquisition of Nordic Dental Holding AB
issuance of 125,000 shares at an issue price of 60p each to an adviser (Cenkos Securities Limited) for services
rendered in relation to the merger of the Company and Bombshell Limited.

Further details are set out in notes 20 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report, continued

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS
On 25 June 2007, the latest practicable date prior to issuing this report, the following shareholdings (excluding
directors) in excess of 3 percent have been notified to the Company.
Number

%

18,233,461

33.55

9,343,334

17.19

EFG Bank

4,313,334

7.94

Björn Branth Project AB

1,795,000

3.30

Ordinary shares of 50 pence each
Hosar International Limited*
Metroland BVBA

* a company controlled by Lord Ashcroft, KCMG.

Directors and their interests
The Directors of the Company, who served during the period, are as follows:

Executive Directors
Per Gunnar Båtelson (Chairman and Chief Executive)
Johan Fredrick Schering Ian Wachtmeister (Deputy Chief Executive and Chief Operating Officer)
James Fitzgerald Thornton (Corporate Finance Director)

Non-Executive Directors #
David Bruce Hammond
Andrew Stephen Wilson
# members of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
The interests of the Directors in the ordinary shares of the Company are as follows:
At
1 Apr 2006
and
Ordinary shares of 50 pence each 27 Jun 2006

Acquired on
merger
(a)

Acquired
through
placing
(b)

Acquired
through
acquisitions
At
(c) 31 Dec 2006

Per Båtelson

–

–

916,668

2,465,000

3,381,668

Johan Wachtmeister

–

–

991,667

2,360,000

3,351,667

James Thornton

–

–

50,000

100,000

150,000

David Hammond

–

102,914

179,373

–

282,287

Andrew Wilson

–

32,110

–

–

32,110

a. acquired through the merger between the Company and Bombshell in August 2006.
b. acquired though the placing of shares by the Company in August 2006.
c. acquired through the acquisitions of Global Health Partner Swe AB and / or Stockholm Spine Nya Holding AB.
Mr Båtelson and Mr Wachtmeister each has an option to purchase 991,667 ordinary shares from certain other
(non-director) shareholders of the Company at any time during the period to August 2009 at an exercise price of
70 pence per share.
At 25 June 2007, the latest practicable date prior to using this report, there have been no changes to the interests
of the Directors.

Global Health Partner PLC
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Directors’ Report, continued

Employee involvement
The Directors recognise the importance of employee involvement established by good communications and
working relationships. The decentralised nature of the Group’s activities necessitates that the practical application
of this policy is the responsibility of local management in a manner appropriate to their circumstances, but is
regularly reviewed by Group management.

Employment policies
It is Group policy to afford equal opportunities to all employees and job applicants. No employee or job applicant
is less favourably treated than another on the grounds of their sex, sexual orientation, age, marital status,
religion, race, nationality, ethnic or national origin, colour or disability, and all appointments and promotions are
determined solely by merit.
It is also Group policy to encourage and assist in the employment, training, re-training and career development
of disabled persons, where possible, having regard to their suitability for a particular vacancy and the nature of
the Group’s activities. In the event that employees become disabled during employment the Group will, where
possible, continue their employment and arrange appropriate training.

Creditor payment policy
Given the nature of the Group’s operations, there is no standard code for the Group in respect of payments to
suppliers. Operations are responsible for agreeing terms and conditions for their business transactions when
orders for goods and services are placed, ensuring that suppliers are aware of the terms of payment and including
the relevant terms in contracts where appropriate. These arrangements are adhered to provided that suppliers
meet their contractual commitments.
The Company has no trade creditors.

Charitable and political contributions
The Group made no charitable contributions or political donations in the period.

Post balance sheet events
Details of post balance sheet events are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Disclosure of information to auditors
Each of the directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, (a) there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and (b) they have taken all steps that might
reasonably be expected to have taken in order to make themselves aware of relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the group and the parent company financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period. Under that law
the Directors have prepared the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and the parent company financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice). The group and parent company financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company and the group and of the profit or loss of the group for the period.

Global Health Partner PLC
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Directors’ Report, continued

In preparing those financial statements the Directors are required to:

»
»
»
»

Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
State whether the group financial statements comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and with
regard to the parent company financial statements whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed; and
Prepare the group and parent company financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the group or the company will continue in business, in which case there should
be supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the group and parent
company financial statements.
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Group’s website: www.globalhealthpartner.com
Information published on the Internet is accessible in many countries with different legal requirements.
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.
The Directors are responsible for maintaining proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the group and
parent company financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. The Directors are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
By Order of the Board

James Fitzgerald Thornton
Secretary
29 June 2007

Independent Auditors’ Report to the
Members of Global Health Partner PLC
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of Global Health Partner PLC

We have audited the group financial statements of Global Health Partner PLC for the period from 1 April 2006
to 31 December 2006 which comprise the consolidated income statement, the consolidated balance sheet, the
consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, the consolidated cash flow statement and the related
notes. These group financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.
We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Global Health Partner PLC for the
period from 1 April 2006 to 31 December 2006.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the group financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are
set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.
Our responsibility is to audit the group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report, including the opinion,
has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
We report to you our opinion as to whether the group financial statements give a true and fair view and whether
the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also
report to you whether, in our opinion, the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the group
financial statements.
In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions
is not disclosed.
We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited
group financial statements. The other information comprises only the Directors’ Report, the Chairman and Chief
Executive’s Review and the Financial Review. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of
any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the group financial statements. Our responsibilities
do not extend to any other information.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of Global Health Partner PLC, continued

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the group financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgments made by the Directors in the preparation of the group financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the group financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the group
financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:

»
»
»

the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31 December 2006 and of its loss and cash flows for the period
1 April 2006 to 31 December 2006;
the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and
the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the group financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London
29 June 2007

Consolidated Income Statement
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Consolidated Income Statements
for the period 1 April 2006 to 31 December 2006
(comparative – 9 September 2004 to 31 March 2006)

1 Apr 2006
to
31 Dec 2006
Notes
£000

9 Sep 2004
to
31 Mar 2006
£000

5,718

–

305

–

6,023

–

Revenue and other operating income
Revenue
Other operating income

4

Operating expenses
(1,735)

–

Other operating expenses

5

(1,817)

(47)

Employee benefit expenses

6

(2,471)

–

(254)

–

(6,277)

(47)

(254)

(47)
103

Materials and consumables

Depreciation and amortisation
Operating loss
Financial income

7

221

Financial expenses

7

(236)

–

(423)

233

(13)

–

(451)

336

Foreign exchange (loss) gain
Share of net loss of associate

12

(Loss) profit before taxation
Taxation

8

Net (loss) profit

(705)

289

(277)

–

(982)

289

(1,092)

289

Attributable to
Shareholders’ equity

110

Minority interests
(Loss) earnings per ordinary share
Basic and diluted (pence)

(982)

289

(4.6)p

4.5p

9

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
at 31 December 2006
(comparative – at 31 March 2006)

Notes

31 Dec 2006
£000

31 Mar 2006
£000

Goodwill

10

22,627

–

Intangible assets

10

407

–

Property, plant and equipment

11

1,040

–

Investment in associate

12

27

–

Other non-current assets

13

Assets
Non-current assets

Total non-current assets

295

–

24,396

–

3,034

6

Current assets
Trade and other receivables

14

Financial assets

15

238

–

Cash and cash equivalents

16

12,614

3,514

Total current assets

15,886

3,520

Total assets

40,282

3,520

1,877

–

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings

17

Trade and other payables

18

Total current liabilities

3,031

14

4,908

14

12,028

–

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings

17

Deferred taxation

19

515

–

Total non-current liabilities

12,543

–

Total liabilities

17,451

14

Net assets

22,831

3,506

20,851

3,217

Shareholders’ equity
20

Called up share capital
Reserves
Total shareholders’ equity
Minority interests
Total equity

1,672

289

22,523

3,506

308

–

22,831

3,506

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements set out on pages 24 to 51 were approved by the Board of Directors on
29 June 2007 and were signed on its behalf by:

Per Båtelson
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Consolidated Statement
of changes in Shareholders’ Equity
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Consolidated Statement
of changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Called
up share
capital
£000
At 9 September 2004
Issue of ordinary shares

Share
premium Convertible
account
bond
£000
£000

Retained
Currency
earnings translation
(deficit)
reserve
£000
£000

Total
shareholders’
equity
£000

Minority
interests
£000

Total
equity
£000

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

3,217

–

–

–

–

3,217

–

3,217

–

–

–

289

–

289

–

289

3,217

–

–

289

–

3,506

–

3,506

Issue of ordinary shares
(note 20)

17,634

2,485

–

–

–

20,119

–

20,119

Expenses of share issues

–

(419)

–

–

–

(419)

–

(419)

Convertible bond (note
17) – equity component

–

–

313

–

–

313

–

313

Minority interests
arising on business
combinations

–

–

–

–

–

–

198

198

Currency translation
differences

–

–

–

–

96

96

–

96

Net profit for the period
At 31 March 2006

Net (loss) for the period

–

–

–

(1,092)

–

(1,092)

110

(982)

At 31 December 2006

20,851

2,066

313

(803)

96

22,523

308

22,831

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statements
for the period 1 April 2006 to 31 December 2006
(comparative – 9 September 2004 to 31 March 2006)

1 Apr 2006
to
31 Dec 2006
Notes
£000

9 Sep 2004
to
31 Mar 2006
£000

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating (loss)

(254)

(47)

254

–

233

103

Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Interest received
Interest paid

(140)

–

Tax paid

(343)

–

Cash flow (used in) generated from operations before
changes in working capital

(250)

56

(1,749)

(6)

Changes in working capital:
Current assets
Current liabilities
Net cash flow (used in) generated from operating activities

945

14

(804)

8

(1,054)

64

Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired

23

Other
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities

(92)

–

(3,259)

–

(137)

–

(3,488)

–

1,158

–

Financing activities
Drawdown of borrowings

(744)

Repayment of borrowings

–

Issue of ordinary shares (net of expenses)

13,180

3,217

Net cash flow generated from financing activities

13,594

3,217

9,052

3,281

48

233

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate changes
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

16

3,514

–

12,614

3,514

See accompanying notes which are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1

General information
Global Health Partner PLC (the “Company”) was incorporated in the United Kingdom (England and Wales) on
27 June 2006.
On 14 August 2006, the Company merged with Bombshell Limited (“Bombshell”).
Bombshell was incorporated in Belize on 9 September 2004, and its shares were traded on the Alternative
Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange (“AIM”). Bombshell’s sole asset was a US dollar
denominated cash deposit.
On 14 August 2006, the Company raised funding of approximately £13.2 million after expenses in a placing
of 23,568,769 ordinary shares.
On 15 August 2006, the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Global Health Partner Swe
AB, a strategic investment and management company based in Sweden and whose principal asset was an
established management team of experienced professionals operating in the specialised healthcare sector.
The acquisition was financed by the issuance of 5,000,000 ordinary shares at 50 pence each.
On 16 August 2006, the Company acquired 90.1 percent of Stockholm Spine Center AB, a specialist spinal
surgery clinic located in Stockholm, Sweden. The acquisition was financed by the issuance of 3,375,000
ordinary shares at 60 pence each, 2,375,000 convertible bonds of £1 each, cash of approximately £2.8
million and the assumption of external acquisition financing. Deferred consideration may become payable in
December 2008 in cash or ordinary shares on the fulfilment, at that time, of certain conditions.
Following the aforementioned transactions, on 16 August 2006, the Company’s ordinary shares were
admitted to trading on AIM (ticker symbol – GHP).
On 5 September 2006, the Company acquired 51 percent of Nordic Dental Implants Clinic AB, a specialist
dental implant clinic located in Stockholm, Sweden. The acquisition was financed by the issuance of
3,200,000 ordinary shares at 60 pence each and the assumption of external acquisition financing. Deferred
consideration may become payable in September 2009 in cash or ordinary shares on the fulfilment, at that
time, of certain conditions.
On 29 September 2006, the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Gothenburg Medical Center AB,
a specialist orthopaedic sports medicine clinic located in Gothenburg, Sweden. The acquisition was financed by a
cash payment of approximately £1.6 million and the assumption of external acquisition financing.

2

Principal accounting policies
Basis of preparation
The Group’s financial statements consolidate those of the Company and all of its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and equity account for the Group’s interest in its associate.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, including interpretations from the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and the Standing Interpretations
Committee (SIC), and the provisions of the UK Companies Act 1985. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets.
The Group’s financial statements have been prepared as at 31 December 2006 and for the period
1 April 2006 to 31 December 2006. The income statement and cash flows comprise those of (i) Bombshell for
the period 1 April 2006 to 14 August 2006, at which time the merger with the Company was effected, and
then (ii) the combined group for the period from 15 August 2006 to 31 December 2006. The Company did
not trade in the period from its date of incorporation on 27 June 2006 to 14 August 2006. The comparative
data is in respect of Bombshell as at 31 March 2006 and for the period 9 September 2004 (its date of
incorporation) to 31 March 2006. Certain figures as at 31 March 2006 and for the period then ended have
been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.
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The consolidated financial statements are presented in UK pounds Sterling.
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of asset and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual
results ultimately may differ from those estimates.
There are two areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity that could cause an adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year – goodwill and taxation.
Impairment reviews in respect of goodwill are performed at least annually, the outcome of which requires
the use of, amongst other things, estimates of market conditions, expectations of future revenues, profits and
cash flows. Taxation (current and deferred) requires judgement in determining the amounts to be recognised
in the differing jurisdications in which the Group operates.
The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP
which are presented separately from these Group financial statements.

Consolidation
The merger between the Company and Bombshell has been accounted for under the pooling of interests
method of accounting, as a required exemption under IFRS, due to the existence of a common controlling
shareholder at that date, Lord Ashcroft, KCMG, in both the Company and Bombshell. This method of
accounting assumes that the combining companies have been merged since their respective inceptions and
requires that the historical consolidated financial statements of Bombshell are pooled with those of the
Company for all periods presented.
(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
Subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements as at the date when control is transferred
to the Group, which normally corresponds to the date of acquisition. Subsidiaries divested during the period
are included in the consolidated financial statements until the date when control ceases.
The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the Group’s acquisition of subsidiaries. Acquisition
cost for a business combination comprises the fair value of the assets utilised as consideration, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed on the exchange date, plus costs directly attributable
to the acquisition. Identifiable acquired assets and assumed liabilities, together with any commitments, are
valued initially at their fair value on the date of acquisition. The difference between acquisition cost and the
fair value of the Group’s share of identifiable acquired net assets is reported as goodwill. If the acquisition
cost is lower than the fair value of the acquired subsidiary’s net assets, the difference is recorded directly in
the consolidated income statement.
Intercompany transactions, balance sheet items and unrealised gains or losses on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated on consolidation.
(ii) Associates

Associated companies are companies in which the Group has a significant but not controlling influence,
which generally corresponds to a shareholding of between 20 percent and 50 percent of the voting rights.
Investments in associated companies are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in associated companies includes goodwill arising on
acquisition (net of any accumulated impairment losses).
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2

Principal accounting policies (continued)
Consolidation (continued)
(ii) Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results of an associated company is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Post acquisition profits and losses are recorded as changes in the reported value of the
holding. When the Group’s share in the losses of an associated company amount to, or exceed its interest in
the associated company, including any unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associated company.
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentational currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in UK pounds Sterling, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.
(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sale
are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security and
other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised
cost are recognised in income, and other changes in the carrying amount are recognised in equity.
(iii) Group companies

The results, cash flows and financial position of all the Group’s entities that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

»
»
»

assets and liabilities for each entity are translated at the closing rate at the date of the balance sheet;
income and expenses for each entity are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and
all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of shareholders’ equity.

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill consists of the amount by which the acquisition cost exceeds the fair value of the Group’s share
of identifiable net assets of the acquired company at the time of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of
subsidiaries is reported as an intangible asset. Goodwill on acquisition of associated companies is included
in “investment in associate”. Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains or losses on
disposal of an entity include the carrying value of the goodwill relating to the disposed entity.
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Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The Group tests goodwill for impairment on at least an annual basis, and otherwise when changes in events
or situations indicate that the carrying value cannot be recovered. If such a test indicates that the carrying
amount is too high, a recoverable amount is established for the asset, which is the higher of net realisable
value and value in use. Value in use is established by discounting anticipated future cash flows attributable to
each cash-generating unit that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. An impairment loss is calculated based on the difference between the carrying amount and the
estimated recoverable amount and recorded in the consolidated income statement.
When calculating value in use, a number of key assumptions and assessments must be made to estimate
future cash flows. Key assumptions and assessments consist primarily of future revenues, expenses, market
growth, investments and discount rates. The Group establishes the discount rate in accordance with a
principle, whereby consideration is given to time values and specific risks. Future revenues, expenses and
investments are based on approved budgets and business plans.
Healthcare supply agreements

Acquired supply agreements are fair valued and capitalised based on their discounted cash flow and are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their contractual life, which is normally 3 to 5 years. The Group tests
for impairment when changes in events or situations indicate that the carrying value cannot be recovered.
Software licenses

Acquired software licenses are fair valued and capitalised on the basis of the costs arising when the software
in question was acquired and put into use. These costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful life, which is normally 3 to 5 years. Costs for the development or maintenance of software
are expensed as they occur. The Group tests for impairment when changes in events or situations indicate
that the carrying value cannot be recovered.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Acquisition cost includes
expenses directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Depreciation is based on the original acquisition
cost and is allocated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset. Subsequent costs
are included in the assets’ carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, if appropriate, only when it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably.
All other forms of repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income statement during the
period in which they are incurred.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each asset, which is
assessed on an annual basis as follows:
Computer equipment
Office equipment
Healthcare equipment

»
»
»

3 to 5 years
5 to 10 years
5 to 14 years

If an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying value of an asset is
immediately written down to its recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These are
recorded in the consolidated income statement.

Global Health Partner PLC

Report & Accounts 31 December 2006

32
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, continued

2

Principal accounting policies (continued)
Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value, less any possible provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to recover any or all amounts due, according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation,
and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the trade receivables are impaired.
The value of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is
recognised in the consolidated income statement as other operating expenses.

Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets into the categories at (i) fair value through the consolidated income
statement and (ii) loans and receivables. This classification depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired.
The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this
designation at each reporting date.
Financial assets at fair value through the consolidated income statement

This comprises financial assets designated at fair value through the consolidated income statement.
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the balance sheet date. Loans and receivables are classified as trade and other receivables in the
consolidated balance sheet.
Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade-date i.e. the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through the consolidated income statement. Financial
assets carried at fair value through the consolidated income statement are initially recognised at fair value
and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated income statement. Investments are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investment have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
The fair value of quoted investments is based on the current bid price.
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, bank balances and other short-term deposits and
investments with original maturities of three months or less. As a result of the short-term maturity of these
financial instruments their carrying value is approximately equal to their fair value.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recorded initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest rate method.
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Unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the balance sheet date, borrowings are classified as current liabilities.
The fair value of the liability portion of a convertible bond is determined using a market interest rate for
an equivalent non-convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or maturity of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option, which is recognised as a separate component of shareholders’ equity.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Transactions costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are
reported, net of tax, in shareholders’ equity.

Taxation
Taxation consist of current tax and deferred tax. Unless attributed to an underlying transaction that has been
recorded in equity, current and deferred taxes are recorded in the consolidated income statement.
Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method on all temporary differences arising between the
tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements.
Deferred tax is determined using the tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
at the balance sheet date or those which are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised
or deferred tax liability is settled. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Revenue recognition
The Group recognises its revenue in the same period as the services are performed. Revenue represents the
invoiced value of services provided to customers net of sales-related taxes. The nature of the Group’s service
business is such that revenue is recognised when a written agreement, terms and conditions are in place
and the services have been fully rendered. At that time, pricing is then fixed and determinable. The Group’s
procedures require review of a customer’s ability to pay prior to a service provision, at the time of such
provision, and at the time of billing, such that collectibility is reasonably assured.

Research and development
Expenditure on research and development is charged to the consolidated income statement during the period
in which it is incurred.

Pension obligations
Pension plans are normally financed through payments to insurance companies. The Group operates a
pension plan for employees classified as a defined contribution plan. A defined contribution plan consists
of contributions into which the Group pays fixed fees to a separate legal entity. The Group has no further
obligations once the contributions have been paid. Contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses as they occur.

Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Minimum lease payments on operating leases are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease period.
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee
are capitalised and classified as finance leases. Depreciation on the acquisition costs are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease terms. Interest costs
deriving from the financing of finance leases are also charged to the consolidated income statement.
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2

Principal accounting policies (continued)
Interest income
Interest income is recognised in the consolidated income statement on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest rate method.

Segment reporting
A business segment is a group of operations and assets engaged in providing services or products that are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical segment
is engaged in providing services and products within a particular economic environment that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.
The directors have determined that the Group is currently engaged in one business segment which is the
provision of specialised healthcare services and that all operations for the period under review are based in
one geographic segment, namely Sweden.

3

Financial risk management
The overall objective of the financial risk management of the Group is to minimise risks that may have
an adverse impact on the Group’s results, cash flows or financial position. Accordingly, only financial
investments with a lower risk profile are made when required.
Risk exposures and the related risk management are described below:

a)

Currency risks

A large proportion of the Group’s current operations are carried out in Sweden and in Swedish Kronor. The
carrying value of the Group’s net investment in subsidiaries and the revenues, costs and cash flows of those
subsidiaries are subject to the risk of gains and losses on translation from the Swedish Kronor to Sterling. The
Group also holds an investment in, and provides loans to, an associated company, incorporated in Norway.
Accordingly, there is also a limited risk exposure related to the Norwegian currency. The Group is also subject
to an indirect exposure to certain US Dollar related purchases of materials for which the price is sensitive to
movements in the US Dollar. At 31 December 2006, the Swedish Kronor / Sterling exchange rate was 13.4273.
If this rate had weakened or strengthened by 5 percent, with all other variables held constant, the Group’s net
assets would change by approximately £0.9 million.

b)

Interest rate risks

Interest rate risks in the Group are mainly related to bank balances and exposure of its borrowings to floating
interest rates. Risks associated with changes in interest rates are managed by maintaining central cash
balances offsetting borrowings at the operations and investing these solely in overnight cash and short-term
deposit accounts predominantly in Sterling.

c)

Credit risks

The Group’s credit risks are principally related to trade receivables. The risk of bad debt losses is managed
through control of the sales ledger. The credit risk is considered to be reduced by the fact that the Group’s
major customers are regarded as creditworthy, generally public organisations.

d)

Market risks

The Group’s business is in clinics and other operating entities, and also in liquid funds. As such, market risks
are considered by the directors to be limited.

Global Health Partner PLC

Report & Accounts 31 December 2006

35
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, continued

4

Other operating income

Research compensation

9 Sep 2004
to
31 Mar 2006
£000

150

–

17

–

138

–

305

–

1 Apr 2006
to
31 Dec 2006
£000

9 Sep 2004
to
31 Mar 2006
£000

– statutory audits – group and parent company (a)

75

6

– statutory audits – subsidiaries (b)

24

–

Non-audit services (c)

23

–

Operating lease rentals

284

–

Rental and service income
Other income

5

1 Apr 2006
to
31 Dec 2006
£000

Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses include:

Auditors’ remuneration:

(a) payable to the Company’s auditors – PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
(b) payable to the network of separate and independent members firms of PwC
(c) payable to PwC for other services including assurance and advisory work
In addition to the above, during the period the Company’s auditors were paid £123,000 in respect of work in
respect of acquisitions and issues of the Company’s shares. These costs have been recorded (i) as a direct cost
relating to the acquisition of subsidiaries – £111,000, and (ii) in the share premium account (expenses of share
issues) – £12,000.

6

Employee benefit expenses
1 Apr 2006
to
31 Dec 2006
£000

9 Sep 2004
to
31 Mar 2006
£000

1,748

–

Social security costs

620

–

Pension costs (defined contribution plans)

103

–

2,471

–

Wages and salaries

The average monthly number of employees during the period was 142.
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6

Employee benefit expenses (continued)
Directors’ remuneration
1 Apr 2006
to
31 Dec 2006
£000

9 Sep 2004
to
31 Mar 2006
£000

258

–

Executive:
Emoluments (including benefits)
Contributions to money purchase pension plans

41

–

299

–

23

–

322

–

Non-Executive:
Fees

The emoluments (including benefits) of the highest-paid director were £105,000, plus contributions to money
purchase pension plans of £20,000. The number of directors for whom contributions were made under money
purchase pension arrangements was three.
Further details of transactions with directors are set out in note 24.

7

Financial income and expenses
1 Apr 2006
to
31 Dec 2006
£000

9 Sep 2004
to
31 Mar 2006
£000

221

103

Financial income
Bank interest income
Financial expenses
Bank interest expense
Interest on convertible bond (note 17)
Other financial expenses

8

(170)

–

(63)

–

(3)

–

(236)

–

Taxation

Non-UK current tax
Non-UK deferred tax (note 19)
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1 Apr 2006
to
31 Dec 2006
£000

9 Sep 2004
to
31 Mar 2006
£000

201

–

76

–

277

–
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The tax on the Group’s results differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to the results of the consolidated entities as follows:
1 Apr 2006
to
31 Dec 2006
£000

9 Sep 2004
to
31 Mar 2006
£000

(Loss) profit before taxation

(705)

Tax calculated at effective tax rates

(216)

289

(14)

(289)

Income not subject to tax

289

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

10

–

Other adjustments

38

–

459

–

277

–

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised

Domestic corporate tax in Sweden is calculated at 28 percent of the assessable profit.
In the period ended 31 March 2006, net profit was not subject to tax, by virtue of Bombshell’s status under
legislation in Belize, its country of incorporation.

9

(Loss) earnings per ordinary share
Basic
Basic (loss) earnings per ordinary share has been calculated on the (loss) earnings attributable to equity
shareholders divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period.
1 Apr 2006
to
31 Dec 2006
£000
(Loss) earnings for the period (£000)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
(Loss) earnings per ordinary share (pence)

(1,092)
23,887,601
(4.6)

9 Sep 2004
to
31 Mar 2006
£000
289
6,433,455
4.5

Diluted
The impact of the issuance of ordinary shares in future periods, which at 31 December 2006 solely arises from
the convertible bond (note 17), is anti-dilutive in nature. The adjustment to earnings in the period, for the
effective interest on the convertible bonds, was £63,000 and the increase in the weighted average number of
ordinary shares was 1,738,183.

10 Goodwill and intangible assets
31 Dec 2006
£000

31 Mar 2006
£000

22,627

–

407

–

Software licenses

‑

–

Intangible assets

407

–

23,034

–

Goodwill
Healthcare supply agreements
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10 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

Goodwill
£000

Healthcare
supply
agreements
£000

Software
licenses
£000

Total
£000

Cost
-

-

-

-

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 23)

22,627

560

1

23,188

At 31 December 2006

22,627

560

1

23,188

At 1 April 2006

-

-

-

-

Charge for the period

-

153

1

154

At 31 December 2006

-

153

1

154

22,627

407

-

23,034

-

-

-

-

At 1 April 2006

Amortisation

Net book values
At 31 December 2006
At 31 March 2006

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (CGUs) for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the business combination in which the goodwill arose. At 31 December 2006, the net book value of goodwill
allocated to each CGU is as follows: Spine surgery and rehabilitation, Dental implant surgery and prosthesis
surgery, and Orthopaedic and sports medicine surgery and rehabilitation – £11,360,000, £8,925,000 and
£2,342,000, respectively.
The Group tests goodwill for impairment at least on an annual basis, and otherwise when changes in events
or situations indicate that the carrying value cannot be recovered. If such a test indicates that the carrying
amount is too high, a recoverable amount is established for the asset, which is the higher of net realisable
value and value in use. Value in use is established by discounting anticipated future cash flows attributable
to each CGU that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. For the
period ended 31 December 2006, the discount rate utilised was 7.5 percent. Based on the tests conducted, no
goodwill impairment was recorded as at 31 December 2006.
The healthcare supply agreements are with Stockholm County Council.

11 Property, plant and equipment
Computer
equipment
£000

Office
equipment
£000

Healthcare
equipment
£000

Total
£000

Net book values
At 1 April 2006
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 23)

–

–

–

–

46

111

891

1,048

Additions

30

14

48

92

Depreciation

(15)

(11)

(74)

(100)

61

114

865

1,040

Cost

76

125

939

1,140

Accumulated depreciation

(15)

(11)

(74)

61

114

865

At 31 December 2006
At 31 December 2006

Net book values

Global Health Partner PLC

Report & Accounts 31 December 2006

(100)
1,040

39
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, continued

The net book value of assets held under finance lease arrangements are as follows:
31 Dec 2006
£000
Office equipment

40

Health care equipment

56
96

12 Investment in associate
31 Dec 2006
£000

31 Mar 2006
£000

53

–

Share of net loss (after tax)

(13)

–

Other movements

(13)

–

Net book value

27

–

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 23)

Prior to its acquisition by the Company in August 2006, Stockholm Spine Center AB acquired, for cash
consideration, a 26 percent equity shareholding in a Norwegian start-up company – Vestnorsk Otopedisk
Sykehus AS (VOS), a company seeking to enter the spine surgery and rehabilitation specialised healthcare
sector. Subsequent share issues by VOS resulted in the Group holding a 22.1 percent equity interest in VOS as
at 31 December 2006. Subsequent to the year end, in January 2007 the Group increased its holding in VOS to
24.6 percent through a capital injection of approximately £72,000.
The financial information of VOS for the period ended 31 December 2006 was as follows:
31 Dec 2006
£000
1,629

Total assets

(1,358)

Total liabilities
Revenue

612

Net loss

(138)

13 Other non-current assets
31 Dec 2006
£000

31 Mar 2006
£000

Amounts due from associate

170

–

Other assets

125

–

295

–

The loan provided to the associate is unsecured, subordinated, and bears interest at Nibor (Norwegian
Interbank Offered Rate) plus 4 percent and is repayable by 2010. The effective interest rate for the period was
7.55 percent.
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14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Less provision for doubtful receivables
Trade receivables – net
Consumables
Current tax assets
Prepayments and accrued income
Other debtors

31 Dec 2006
£000

31 Mar 2006
£000

1,815

–

(1)

–

1,814

–

114

–

27

–

803

6

276

–

3,034

6

There was no bad debt expense charged to the consolidated income statement. The fair values of trade and
other receivables approximate their book values.

15 Financial assets

Listed equity securities

31 Dec 2006
£000

31 Mar 2006
£000

238

–

The listed equity securities are denominated in Swedish Kronor and stated at fair value. There was no
impairment charge during the period.

16 Cash and cash equivalents
31 Dec 2006
£000

31 Mar 2006
£000

77

–

Cash at bank – Swedish Kronor

2,597

–

Short-term deposits – denominated in Sterling

6,514

–

Short-term deposits – denominated in Swedish Kronor

3,426

–

–

3,514

12,614

3,514

Cash at bank – Sterling

Short-term deposits – denominated in US Dollar (note 24)

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits for the period approximated 4.7 percent for Sterling
and 2.6 percent for Swedish Kronor (comparative period – 3.5 percent for the US Dollar). At 31 December 2006
and 31 March 2006, all deposits had an average maturity of 30 days.
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17 Borrowings
31 Dec 2006
£000

31 Mar 2006
£000

1,162

–

681

–

34

–

1,877

–

Bank borrowings (secured)

8,025

–

Convertible bond (secured)

2,125

–

Debt due to minority shareholders (unsecured)

1,824

–

54

–

12,028

–

13,905

–

Current
Bank borrowings (secured)
Debt due to minority shareholders (unsecured)
Finance leases (secured)
Non-current

Finance leases (secured)
Total borrowings

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings, debt due to minority shareholders and finance leases
(in aggregate £11,780,000) are all denominated in Swedish Kronor. The convertible bond (£2,125,000) is
denominated in Sterling.
Bank borrowings are secured by floating charges on the underlying assets of the subsidiary companies in
whose name the borrowings are made. The principal financial covenant applicable to each borrowing is that
the relevant bank debt should not exceed a given multiple of EBITDA in any given period.
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17 Borrowings (continued)
The maturity profile of non-current borrowings is as follows:
31 Dec 2006
£000
Between 1 and 2 years

1,285

Between 2 and 5 years

8,512
2,231

Over 5 years

12,028

Obligations under finance leases are payable as follows:
31 Dec 2006
£000
Minimum lease payments:
Principal

88

Interest

15

The principal amounts payable are as follows:
Within 1 year

34

Between 1 and 2 years

34

Between 2 and 5 years

20
88

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows:
31 Dec 2006
4.1% to 4.65%

Bank borrowings

8%

Convertible bond

3.1% to 12%

Finance leases

The debt due to minority shareholders is non-interest bearing.
The carrying amounts and fair values of non-current borrowings are as follows:
Carrying
amounts
Fair values
31 Dec 2006 31 Dec 2006
£000
£000
Bank borrowings

8,025

8,319

Convertible bond

2,125

2,125

Debt due to minority shareholders

1,824

1,824

54

56

Finance leases

The carrying amounts of short-term borrowings approximate their fair values.
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Convertible bond
On 16 August 2006, as part of the consideration paid in respect of the acquisition of Stockholm Spine
Center AB (note 23), the Company issued 2,375,000 three-year, non-transferable, convertible bonds of £1
each, which carry compound interest accrued at the nominal rate of 3 percent per annum. The bonds are
convertible into the Company’s ordinary shares after three years (or on an offer being made for the Company)
at the option of the holders at a conversion price of 75 pence per ordinary share.
The fair value of the liability component and the equity conversion component were determined at the date
of issuance of the bond. The fair value of the liability component was calculated using a market interest rate
for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The residual amount, representing the value of the equity conversion
component, is included as a separate component in shareholders’ equity.
The value of the convertible bond is calculated as follows:
£000
2,375

Face value of bond at issuance

(313)

Equity component of bond

2,062

Liability component on initial recognition

63

Interest expense in the period (note 7)

2,125

Liability component at 31 December 2006

At 31 December 2006, the Group also had in place short-term, secured (floating charges) bank overdraft
facilities (denominated in Swedish Kronor) of approximately £745,000. No amounts were drawn under
these facilities.

18 Trade and other payables
31 Dec 2006
£000

31 Mar 2006
£000

Trade payables

915

–

Current tax liabilities

160

–

Accruals and deferred income

805

14

Other payables

1,151

–

3,031

14

Included in other payables (i) £153,000 payable to the vendors of Leif Sward Ortopedi AB, the entity acquired
by the Company after the balance sheet date (note 26c); (ii) £135,000 payable to the vendors of Stockholm
Spine Nya Holding AB (a subsidiary of the Group acquired in the period); and (iii) £179,000 for a deposit
received in advance of the share placing (note 26e). The fair values of trade and other payables approximate
their book values. All these amounts are unsecured and non-interest bearing.
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19 Deferred taxation
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the period is as follows:

At 1 April 2006

Reserves
£000

Accelerated
tax
depreciation
£000

Other
£000

Total
£000

–

–

–

–

Charge for the period (note 8)

109

8

(41)

76

Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 23)

208

36

195

439

At 31 December 2006

317

44

154

515

Reserves are temporary timing differences, whereby an element of profits can be deferred from the payment
of current tax in certain jurisdictions.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. At 31 December 2006, the Group did not
recognise deferred tax assets of approximately £459,000 (31 March 2006 – nil).

20 Called up share capital
Number

£000

2

–

Created (7 July 2006)

99,999,998

50,000

At 31 December 2006

100,000,000

50,000

On incorporation (27 June 2006)

49,999

50

At 31 December 2006

49,999

50

100,049,999

50,050

2

–

(2)

–

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of 50 pence each
On incorporation (27 June 2006)

Redeemable preference shares of £1 each

Total at 31 December 2006
Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of 50 pence each
On incorporation (27 June 2006)
Redeemed at par

6,433,455

3,217

Issued for cash

23,568,769

11,784

Issued for acquisition of subsidiaries (note 23)

11,575,000

5,787

125,000

63

41,702,224

20,851

–

–

Issued on merger with Bombshell

Issued for payment for services
At 31 December 2006

Redeemable preference shares of £1 each
On incorporation (27 June 2006)
Issued in period

49,999

50

Redeemed at par

(49,999)

(50)

At 31 December 2006
Total at 31 December 2006
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At 31 March 2006, Bombshell had an authorised share capital of £10 million, comprising 20,000,000 ordinary
shares for 50 pence each; and an issued and fully paid balance of £3,217,000, comprising 6,433,455 ordinary
shares of 50 pence each.
The total share premium arising on the aforementioned share issues amounted to £2,485,000 less expenses
of share issues of £419,000. These expenses include £75,000 in respect of the issuance of 125,000 ordinary
shares at 60 pence each to Cenkos Securities Limited (the Company’s nominated adviser under AIM
regulations) for services rendered in relation to the issue of shares in respect of the merger of the Company
and Bombshell.
Subsequent to the year end, the Company has issued a further 12,643,268 ordinary shares – (i) on 7 February 2007,
314,439 ordinary shares were issued to certain senior managers in the Gothenburg Medical Center business;
(ii) on 15 February 2007, 328,829 ordinary shares were issued in connection with the acquisition of Obesity
Stockholm AB; and (iii) on 20 February 2007, a placing of 12,000,000 ordinary shares was completed at an
issue price of £1 each. Further details are set out in note 26e.

21 Commitments
Operating leases
The Group leases various premises and offices, medical equipment, computers and other equipment. The
leases have varying terms, cancellations clauses and renewal rights. The future aggregate minimum lease
payments under operating leases are as follows:

Within one year
Between two and five years
Over five years

31 Dec 2006
£000

31 Mar 2006
£000

753

–

1,855

–

618

–

3,226

–

22 Contingencies
In the normal course of business, the Group enters into arms’ length contracts and arrangements with
personnel for the provision of services. The tax arrangements in respect of such contracts are complex and
may be open to different interpretations. The Group does not currently consider that it has any further
liability under the contracts, and would vigorously defend such a position in the event that assessments,
which could be material, were received.
Other than as referred to above, as at 31 December 2006 the Group is not aware of any contingencies or litigation
that could, or may, have a material adverse effect on the Group’s results, cash flows or financial position.
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23 Acquisition of subsidiaries
The significant acquisitions of the Group during the period were as follows:

a)

Global Health Partner Swe AB

On 15 August 2006, the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Global Health Partner Swe AB,
a strategic investment and management company based in Sweden and whose principal asset was an
established management team of experienced professionals operating in the specialised healthcare sector.
The acquisition was financed by the issuance of 5,000,000 ordinary shares at 50 pence each.
£000
Purchase consideration:
– Shares issued
– Direct costs relating to the acquisition
Total purchase consideration
Fair value of liabilities acquired (see below)

2,500
19
2,519
187
2,706

Goodwill

The goodwill is attributable to the management team of the acquired business.
The fair value (which is equivalent to book value) of the assets and liabilities from the acquisition are as follows:
£000
Cash and cash equivalents
Property, plant and equipment

16
12

Other current assets

159

Other current liabilities

(374)

Net liabilities acquired

(187)

Purchase consideration settled in cash

19

Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary acquired

(16)

Cash outflow on acquisition

b)

3

Stockholm Spine Nya Holding AB

On 16 August 2006, the Company acquired 90.1 percent of Stockholm Spine Center AB and its subsidiaries, a
specialist spinal surgery clinic located in Stockholm, Sweden. The acquisition was financed by the issuance of
3,375,000 ordinary shares at 60 pence each, 2,375,000 convertible bonds of £1 each, cash of approximately
£2.8 million and the assumption of external acquisition financing. Deferred consideration may become
payable in December 2008 in cash or ordinary shares on the fulfilment, at that time, of certain conditions.
Each of the minority shareholders and the Company has a right to require the other to purchase or sell, as
the case may be, the outstanding minority shareholdings at various time after July 2009 based on a formulae
determinable at that time and is payable in either cash or ordinary shares.
£000
Purchase consideration:
– Shares issued

2,025

– Convertible bond issued (note 17)

2,375

– Cash paid

2,614

– Direct costs relating to the acquisition

195

Total purchase consideration

7,209

Fair value of liabilities acquired (see below)

2,786

Goodwill

9,995

The goodwill is attributable to the future earning capacity of the acquired business as well as the local
management team’s ability to further develop the business.
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The fair value (which is equivalent to book value) of the assets and liabilities from the acquisition are as follows:
£000
1,050

Cash and cash equivalents

479

Property, plant and equipment

14

Goodwill
Intangible assets

561

Investment in and amounts due from associate

223

Financial assets

238

Other current assets

526

Other current liabilities

(869)

Deferred taxation

(434)

Borrowings

(4,476)

Net liabilities

(2,688)
(98)

Minority interest
Net liabilities acquired

(2,786)

Purchase consideration settled in cash

2,809

Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary acquired

(1,050)

Cash outflow on acquisition

1,759

c)

Nordic Dental Holding AB

On 5 September 2006, the Company acquired 51 percent of Nordic Dental Implants Clinic AB and its
subsidiaries, a specialist dental implant clinic located in Stockholm, Sweden. The acquisition was financed
by the issuance of 3,200,000 ordinary shares at 60 pence each and the assumption of external acquisition
financing. Deferred consideration may become payable in September 2009 in cash or ordinary shares on
the fulfilment, at that time, of certain conditions. Each of the minority shareholders and the Company has a
right to require the other to purchase or sell, as the case may be, the outstanding minority shareholdings at
various time after July 2009 based on a formulae determinable at that time and is payable in either cash or
ordinary shares.
£000
Purchase consideration:
– Shares issued

1,920

– Cash received

(80)

– Direct costs relating to the acquisition

91

Total purchase consideration

1,931

Fair value of liabilities acquired (see below)

5,360

Goodwill

7,291

The goodwill is attributable to the future earning capacity of the acquired business as well as the local
management team’s ability to further develop the business.
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23 Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)
c)

Nordic Dental Holding AB (continued)

The fair value (which is equivalent to book value) of the assets and liabilities from the acquisition are as follows:
£000
21

Cash and cash equivalents
Property, plant and equipment

178

Goodwill

550

Other current assets

302

Other current liabilities

(463)
(14)

Deferred taxation
Borrowings

(5,834)

Net liabilities

(5,260)
(100)

Minority interest
Net liabilities acquired

(5,360)

Purchase consideration settled in cash

11

Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary acquired

(21)

Cash inflow on acquisition

(10)

d)

Gothenburg Medical Center AB

On 29 September 2006, the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Gothenburg Medical Center
AB and its subsidiaries, a specialist orthopaedic sports medicine clinic located in Gothenburg, Sweden. The
acquisition was financed by a cash payment of approximately £1.6 million and the assumption of external
acquisition financing.
£000
Purchase consideration:
1,516

– Cash paid
– Direct costs relating to the acquisition
Total purchase consideration
Fair value of assets acquired (see below)

1,564
(88)
1,476

Goodwill

The goodwill is attributable to the future earning capacity of the acquired business as well as the local
management team’s ability to further develop the business.
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The fair value (which is equivalent to book value) of the assets and liabilities from the acquisition are as follows:
£000
57

Cash and cash equivalents
Property, plant and equipment

379

Goodwill

595

Other current assets

278
9

Deferred taxation
Other current liabilities

(352)

Borrowings

(878)
88

Net assets acquired

1,564

Purchase consideration settled in cash

(57)

Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary acquired

1,507

Cash outflow on acquisition

24 Related party transactions and disclosures
i)

Key management compensation

Remuneration for the Group’s key management (including executive directors) was as follows:

Wages and salaries
Pensions costs (defined contribution plans)

1 Apr 2006
to
31 Dec 2006
£000

9 Sep 2004
to
31 Mar 2006
£000

358

–

50

–

408

–

ii)

Transactions with directors

a.
b.

Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in note 6.
The Group agreed to pay a consultancy fee to Messrs Båtelson and Wachtmeister of £41,000 and
£31,000, respectively, in respect of their services prior to the Company’s merger with Bombshell. These
amounts are included in (i) above.
At the time of the acquisition of Global Health Partner Swe AB by the Company (note 23), the following
directors were interested in the shares of GHP AB: Mr Båtelson – 49.3 percent; Mr Wachtmeister –
35.2 percent; and Mr Thornton – 2.0 percent.
Mr Wachtmeister was one of the original founders of Stockholm Spine Center AB and at the time of
its acquisition by the Company (note 23) he was interested in 16.4 percent of the shares of Stockholm
Spine Center.

c.
d.
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24 Related party transactions and disclosures (continued)
iii) Other related party transactions
The Group has accounted for payments to companies connected with the Group’s significant shareholder
Hosar International Limited as follows:
1 Apr 2006
to
31 Dec 2006
£000

9 Sep 2004
to
31 Mar 2006
£000

Payments to Strand Associates Limited for the services of Mr Wilson as a nonexecutive director of the Company

10

–

Payments to Strand Associates Limited for the reimbursement of certain costs
incurred in respect of the Company prior to the merger with Bombshell

116

–

41

–

Payments to BB Holdings Limited for accountancy services

Hosar International Limited, Strand Associates Limited and BB Holdings Limited are companies controlled by
Lord Ashcroft, KCMG.
As at 31 March 2006, all cash and cash equivalents were held at The Belize Bank Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of BB Holdings Limited.
In connection with the August 2006 placing by the Company of 23,568,769 ordinary shares of 50 pence
each at an issue price of 55.75 pence to 60 pence per share (total net cash proceeds of £13,180,000), Hosar
International Limited entered into an agreement whereby, amongst other things, Hosar agreed to underwrite
the placing.

25 Subsidiaries
All subsidiaries, with the exception of Global Health Partner UK Limited which is incorporated in England and
Wales, are incorporated in Sweden.
Name

Ownership

Nature of business

Global Health Partner UK Limited *

100% Management services

Global Health Partner Swe AB *

100% Management services

GHP Holding AB *

100%

Investment holding

GHP Obesity Holding AB

100%

Investment holding

GHP Förvaltning AB

100%

Investment holding

Gothenburg Medical Center AB #

100%

Healthcare services

Stockholm Spine Nya Holding AB

90.1%

Investment holding

Stockholm Spine Center AB

90.1%

Healthcare services

Nordic Dental Holding AB

51%

Investment holding

Nordic Dental Implants Clinic AB

51%

Healthcare services

* Directly held by the Company
# Ownership changed to 72 percent subsequent to the year end (note 26c)
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26 Post balance sheet events
a)

Acquisition of Stockholm’s Specialistvård AB

On 12 January 2007, the Company announced the acquisition of 88 percent of Stockholm’s Specialistvård AB,
an orthopaedic surgery clinic located in Stockholm, Sweden. The acquisition was financed by cash of
approximately £1.0 million. Goodwill arising on the transaction has been provisionally determined at
approximately £0.4 million.

b)

Acquisition of Obesity Stockholm AB

On 15 February 2007, the Company announced the acquisition of 65 percent of Obesity Stockholm AB, with
its wholly-owned subsidiary Kirurgkliniken Sverige AB, a private obesity clinic located in Stockholm, Sweden.
The acquisition was financed by the issuance of 328,829 ordinary shares at 130 pence each. Goodwill arising
on the transaction has been provisionally determined at approximately £1.1 million. In June 2007, Obesity
Stockholm AB obtained additional bank financing facilities amounting to approximately £840,000.

c)

Acquisition of Leif Swärd Ortopedi AB

On 18 April 2007, the Company announced the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Leif Swärd
Ortopedi AB (IFK- kliniken), a private sports medicine clinic located in Gothenburg, Sweden. The acquisition
was financed by cash of approximately £1.1 million and the issuance of shares in the Group’s subsidiary
Gothenburg Medical Center AB (GMC) at a value of approximately £1.0 million and representing a 28 percent
minority holding in GMC. Goodwill arising on the transaction has been provisionally determined at
approximately £1.6 million.

d)

Investment in Elderly Care

On 20 June 2007, the Company announced the provision of approximately £0.9 million committed resources
to be made available as venture capital to develop Elutera, a new venture within the Swedish elderly
care market in which GHP owns approximately 43 percent of the operating company and approximately
47 percent of the investment company, whilst acting in partnership with an elderly care entrepreneur and a
property company.

e)

Issue of ordinary shares

On 7 February 2007, the Company announced that it had issued 314,439 ordinary shares at 71.24 pence each
to certain senior managers in the GMC business.
On 20 February 2007, the Company announced that it had placed, with existing shareholders, a further
12 million ordinary shares of 50 pence each at an issue price of £1 per share, raising approximately
£12 million after expenses. The net proceed of the placing will be utilised as additional working capital to
fund growth of the Group both organically and by acquisition.

Independent Auditors’ Report to the
members of Global Health Partner PLC
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of Global Health Partner PLC

We have audited the parent company financial
statements of Global Health Partner PLC for the
period from 1 April 2006 to 31 December 2006 which
comprise the balance sheet and the related notes.
These parent company financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

Report, the Chairman and Chief Executive’s Review
and the Financial Review. We consider the implications
for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with
the parent company financial statements. Our
responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

We have reported separately on the group financial
statements of Global Health Partner PLC for the period
from 1 April 2006 to 31 December 2006.

Basis of audit opinion

Respective responsibilities of
directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual
Report and the parent company financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the parent company
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of
the significant estimates and judgments made by the
directors in the preparation of the parent company
financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

Our responsibility is to audit the parent company
financial statements in accordance with relevant
legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report,
including the opinion, has been prepared for and only
for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose
or to any other person to whom this report is shown
or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all
the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent
company financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the parent company financial statements.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the
parent company financial statements give a true
and fair view and whether the parent company
financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also
report to you whether, in our opinion, the information
given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the
parent company financial statements.

»

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the
company has not kept proper accounting records, if we
have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit, or if information specified
by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other
transactions is not disclosed.
We read other information contained in the Annual
Report and consider whether it is consistent with
the audited parent company financial statements.
The other information comprises only the Directors’
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Opinion
In our opinion:

»
»

the parent company financial statements give
a true and fair view, in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
of the state of the company’s affairs as at
31 December 2006;
the parent company financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985; and
the information given in the Directors’ Report
is consistent with the parent company financial
statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London
29 June 2007
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Company Balance Sheets
at 31 December 2006
(comparative – 31 March 2006)

Notes

31 Dec 2006
£000

31 Mar 2006
£000

15,435

–

Fixed assets
Investments in subsidiary undertakings

4

Current assets
Debtors

5

272

6

Cash at bank and in hand

6

10,017

3,514

10,289

3,520

714

14

9,575

3,506

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

7

Net current assets
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

8

Net assets

(2,125)

–

22,885

3,506

Capital and reserves
9

20,851

3,217

Reserves

10

2,034

289

Equity shareholders’ funds

11

22,885

3,506

Called up share capital

The financial statements set out on pages 53 to 56 were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2007 and
were signed on its behalf by:

Per Båtelson
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Notes to the Company
Financial Statements
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1

Principal Accounting policies
Basis of preparation
Global Health Partner PLC (the “Company”) was incorporated in the United Kingdom (England and Wales) on
27 June 2006. On 14 August 2006, the Company merged with Bombshell Limited. Further details are set out
in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
The parent company financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, in accordance with the Companies Act
1985 and applicable United Kingdom accounting standards (UK GAAP).
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 from
presenting its own profit and loss account.
Under Financial Reporting Standard No. 1 (revised) (Cash flow statements), the Company is exempt from the
requirement to prepare a cash flow statement as its cash flows are included within the published
consolidated statement of cash flows of Global Health Partner PLC.
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained within Financial Reporting Standard No. 8
(Related party disclosures) and has not therefore disclosed transactions or balances with entities which form
part of the Group.

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any provision for impairment.

Cash at bank and in hand
Cash at bank and in hand consist of cash in hand, bank balances and other short-term deposits and
investments with original maturities of three months or less. As a result of the short-term maturity of these
financial instruments their carrying value is approximately equal to their fair value.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Transactions costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are
reported, net of tax, in shareholders’ equity.

Taxation
Taxation consist of current tax and deferred tax. Unless attributed to an underlying transaction that has been
recorded in equity, current and deferred taxes are recorded in the consolidated income statement.
Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method on all temporary differences arising between the
tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements.
Deferred tax is determined using the tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
at the balance sheet date or those which are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised
or deferred tax liability is settled. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

2

Directors and employees
The remuneration of the parent company directors are disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Company has no other employees.

3

Profit and loss account
The loss for the period 1 April 2006 to 31 December 2006 dealt with in the accounts of the Company was
£634,000 (comparative period from 9 September 2004 to 31 March 2006 – £289,000 profit).
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4

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

At 1 April 2006
Additions
Contribution

Shares
£000

Long-term
loans
£000

Total
£000

–

–

–

11,666

11,790

23,456

1,119

–

1,119

Transfers

(9,140)

–

At 31 December 2006

3,645

11,790

(9,140)
15,435

At 31 December 2006, the investments in subsidiary undertakings comprises:
i)

a 100% investment in Global Health Partner UK Limited, a management services company incorporated
in England and Wales, for a nominal amount.
ii) a 100% investment in Global Health Partner Swe AB, a management services company incorporated in
Sweden, for an amount of £3,638,000.
iii) a 100% investment in GHP Holding AB, an investment holding company incorporated in Sweden, for an
amount of £7,000.
In addition to the above undertakings, the Company had acquired the following entities during the period:
»
»

90.1% interest in Stockholm Spine Nya Holding AB
51% interest in Nordic Dental Holding AB

Following an internal reorganisation, on 28 December 2006, the Company transferred the entire investments
of the shares in these companies to Global Health Partner Swe AB. No gain or loss arose on these transfers.
The long-term loans unsecured, repayable by 2025 and bear interest at a rate based on seven-day Stibor
(Swedish Interbank Offered Rate) plus 2 percent.

5

DEBTORS
31 Dec 2006
£000

31 Mar 2006
£000

Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Other debtors and prepayments

6

53

–

219

6

272

6

31 Dec 2006
£000

31 Mar 2006

CASH at BANK AND in HAND

£000

77

–

Short term deposits – denominated in Sterling

6,514

–

Short term deposits – denominated in Swedish Kronor

3,426

–

–

3,514

10,017

3,514

Cash at bank – denominated in Sterling

Short term deposits – denominated in US Dollars

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits for the period approximated 4.7 percent for Sterling
and 2.6 percent for Swedish Kronor (comparative period – 3.5 percent for the US Dollar).
At 31 December 2006 and 31 March 2006, all deposits had an average maturity of 30 days.
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7

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
31 Dec 2006
£000

8

31 Mar 2006
£000

Amounts owed to group undertakings

109

–

Other creditors and accruals

605

14

714

14

31 Dec 2006
£000

31 Mar 2006
£000

2,125

–

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

Convertible bond

Full details of the convertible bond are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

9

Called up share capital
Full details are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

10 RESERVES
Share
premium
account
£000

Convertible
bond
£000

Profit
and loss
account
£000

At 9 September 2004

–

–

–

–

Profit for the period

–

–

289

289

Total
£000

–

–

289

289

Issue of ordinary shares

2,485

–

–

2,485

Expenses of share issues

(419)

–

–

(419)

–

313

–

313

–

–

(634)

2,066

313

(345)

At 31 March 2006

Convertible bond – equity component
Net (loss) for the period
At 31 December 2006

(634)
2,034

11 Reconciliation of equity shareholders’ funds
£000
At 31 March 2006
Shares issued (net of expenses)
Convertible bond – equity component
Net (loss) for the period
At 31 December 2006

Global Health Partner PLC
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